
 
AMENDMENT #1: 2022-11019A, REGIONAL SUB-SAHARAN AFRICA: 
MOBIHEALTH MULTI-COUNTRY TELEHEALTH EXPANSION FEASIBILITY STUDY  

 
 
POC: Anna Amaya, USTDA, 1101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 1100, Arlington, VA 22209-3901, 
Tel: (703) 875-4357, Fax: (703) 775-4037, Email: RFP@ustda.gov.   
 
 
Please note that the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Feasibility Study for the Mobihealth 
Multi-Country Telehealth Expansion is amended, as follows: 
 
Questions, Answers and Clarifications:  This amendment consists of clarifying questions and 
answers submitted by potential Offerors regarding the RFP packet.  Responses to submitted 
questions are below.  
 
Question Answer 
Can we subcontract 
consultants/company who are not based 
in Nigeria (Host Country) but based in 
one of the four Target Countries for 
this study to support the U.S. experts on 
various country specific analysis? 
 
 

Yes, as long as the subconsultants or individuals 
align with other USTDA requirements. This is 
outlined clearly in section 10: Nationality, Source 
and Origin, of the grant agreement. 

Does the Grantee anticipate any travel to 
the four target countries? 
 

In developing the budget for the outlined scope of 
work, funding was set aside for travel expenses. 
The total grant amount of $998,000 includes 
amounts for travel. The timing and specifics of 
travel plans would be detailed further by the U.S. 
contractor and the Grantee as a part of Subtask 
1.2: Work Plan, as outlined in the Terms of 
Reference. 
 

Scope of work – Given our 
understanding of the broad scope of 
work and the need to align with our 
firm’s expertise, we would like to 
confirm if it is possible to bid for select 
tasks only. 
 

No. USTDA requires a qualified and experienced 
U.S. contractor to carry out the USTDA funded 
project preparation work as a prime contractor. 
The U.S. prime contractor may work with sub-
contractors and local labor under the USTDA-
funded grant.  Further information on our grant 
structure and arrangement with U.S. contractors 
can be found on our website: 
https://ustda.gov/ustda-document-center/ . 
 
Our grants are structured in such a way that the 
prime contractor leads and is responsible for 
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seeing all the work carried out in accordance with 
the terms of reference or scope of work. Individual 
tasks may be assigned to subs, but our RFPs and 
grants are not structured in such a way that they 
are bid out individually. Your firm could serve as a 
subcontractor to a prime or a part of a consortium 
of firms. Please note that USTDA does not assist 
with these arrangements.  
 

Section 2.11 Conditions Required for 
Participation states that U.S. firms may 
utilize subcontractors from the host 
country for up to 20% of the amount of 
the USTDA grant. Will a proposer be 
considered non-responsive if a non-U.S. 
subcontractor is not based in the host 
country but still has healthcare 
feasibility experience in the host 
country? 

The bidder would be considered non-compliant. All 
bidders and staff paid under the USTDA grant 
funds must comply with section 10: Nationality, 
Source and Origin requirements outlined in the 
grant agreement. This is a firm requirement.  

What local services, if any, has the 
Grantee confirmed that can be provided 
as it relates to local transportation, 
office space and secretarial support? 
 

The grantee has an office in Lagos Nigeria and 
where necessary can provide meeting rooms. The 
grantee cannot provide any logistical support in 
target countries. 

What is the proposed start date for the 
activities? 

This is subject to further evaluation of the proposal 
from the contractor but as soon as possible. 

Is there an expected/preferred project 
duration? 

Within a reasonable timeline. The grantee 
anticipates completion within six months. 

Is there a deadline for when the 
activities need to be completed for the 
study? 

See answers above. 

Given that some firms have investment 
funds for social impact, is it permitted 
for us to leverage these funds to deliver 
on this work? 

 As long as the additional funds align with USTDA 
grant requirements and the work completed is 
approved by the Grantee as the Client. The details 
of this may be subject to further discussion upon or 
prior to secondary agreement or contract 
finalization if the bidder concerned is selected. 

What resources will be provided by 
MobiHealth? 

See above. This support will be limited as per the 
terms of reference besides very minor assistance 
with local logistics.   

Are there any contacts / partners in the 
target countries that MobiHealth will 
provide for research / discussion? 

No. 

What are the core set of MobiHealth 
offerings currently? 

Telemedicine (integrated) 
Laboratory services 
Pharmaceutical  



Electronic Medical Records, EMR 
Digitalization 
Telehealth shelves 
Telehealth cabins with solar and Internet and Ai 
diagnostics  

What technology have they built? What 
tech / services to they partner license 
with now? 

Integrated telemedicine 
EMR 

If a firm is able to provide additional 
pro-bono resources through their social 
impact fund, can they leverage those 
resources for additional team members 
outside of the USA. 

Please see Section 10: Nationality, Source and 
Origin requirements in the grant agreement. These 
requirements apply to any staff or services paid 
under USTDA grant funds. All other services would 
not be paid under USTDA grant funds. 

 


